
 COLLECTIFY LLC 537 

 

 

 Complaint 

 

IN THE MATTER OF 

 

COLLECTIFY LLC 

 
CONSENT ORDER, ETC. IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATIONS OF 

SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT 

 

Docket No. C-4272; File No. 092 3142 

Complaint, November 9, 2009 - Decision, November 9, 2009 

 

This consent order addresses respondent Collectify, LLC, providers of software 

and consulting services to businesses with employees residing outside of 

origin. Respondent manages tax and payroll issues for employees that work 

outside their country of residence. The complaint alleges the respondent 

violated Section 5 of the FTC Act by making false and misleading 

representations concerning Collectify, LLC’s participation in the Safe Harbor 

privacy framework. Safe Harbor is an international program for international 

data transfer between the U.S. and the European Union. Respondent advertised 

an incorrect status as to its compliance with the program. The order prohibits 

Collectify, LLC from making misrepresentations about its membership in any 

privacy, security, or any other compliance program sponsored by the 

government or any other third party. 

 

Participants 

 

For the Commission: Molly Crawford and Katie Ratté 

 

For the Respondents: Karl M. Zielaznicki, Troutman Sanders, 

LLP. 

 

COMPLAINT 

 

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that 

Collectify LLC (“respondent”) has violated the provisions of the 

Federal Trade Commission Act, and it appearing to the 

Commission that this proceeding is in the public interest, alleges: 

 

1. Respondent Collectify LLC (“Collectify”) is a Delaware 

corporation with its principal office or place of business at 235 

East 73rd Street, Suite 3C, New York, New York 10012. 

 

2. Respondent is in the business of selling comprehensive 

cataloguing software to consumers over the internet, including 

through a website (www.collectify.com).  
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3. The acts and practices of respondent as alleged in this 

complaint have been in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is 

defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act. 

 

4. Since at least September 2001, respondent has set forth on 

its website, www.collectify.com, privacy policies and statements 

about its practices, including statements related to its participation 

in the Safe Harbor privacy framework agreed upon by the U.S. 

and the European Union (“U.S.-EU Safe Harbor Framework” or 

“Safe Harbor”). 

 

U.S.-EU SAFE HARBOR FRAMEWORK 

 

5. The U.S.-EU Safe Harbor Framework provides a method 

for U.S. companies to transfer personal data outside of Europe 

that is consistent with the requirements of the European Union 

Directive on Data Protection (“Directive”).  Enacted in 1995, the 

Directive sets forth European Union (“EU”) requirements for 

privacy and the protection of personal data.  Among other things, 

it requires EU Member States to implement legislation that 

prohibits the transfer of personal data outside the EU, with 

exceptions, unless the European Commission (“EC”) has made a 

determination that the recipient jurisdiction’s laws ensure the 

protection of such personal data.  See Directive 95/46/EC of the 

European Parliament and of the Council (Oct. 24, 1995), 

available at http://eur-lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do? 

uri=CELEX:31995L0046:EN:HTML.  This determination is 

commonly referred to as meeting the EU’s “adequacy” standard. 

 

6. To satisfy the EU adequacy standard for certain 

commercial transfers, the U.S. Department of Commerce 

(“Commerce”) and the EC negotiated the U.S.-EU Safe Harbor 

Framework, which went into effect in 2000.  The Safe Harbor 

allows U.S. companies to transfer personal data lawfully from the 

EU.  To join the Safe Harbor, a company must self-certify to 

Commerce that it complies with seven principles and related 

requirements that have been deemed to meet the EU’s adequacy 

standard. 

 

7. Companies under the jurisdiction of the U.S. Federal 

Trade Commission (“FTC”), as well as the U.S. Department of 

http://eurlex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?%20uri=CEL
http://eurlex.europa.eu/LexUriServ/LexUriServ.do?%20uri=CEL
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Transportation, are eligible to join the Safe Harbor.  A company 

under the FTC’s jurisdiction that self-certifies to the Safe Harbor 

principles but fails to implement them may be subject to an 

enforcement action based on the FTC’s deception authority under 

Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act. 

 

8. Commerce maintains a public website, www.export.gov/ 

safeharbor, where it posts the names of companies that have self-

certified to the Safe Harbor.  The listing of companies indicates 

whether their self-certification is “current” or “not current.”  

Companies are required to re-certify every year in order to retain 

their status as “current” members of the Safe Harbor framework.  

According to the Safe Harbor website, “Organizations should 

notify the Department of Commerce if their representation to the 

Department is no longer valid.  Failure to do so could constitute a 

misrepresentation.”  See Safe Harbor List, available at 

http://web.ita.doc.gov/safeharbor/shlist.nsf/web 

Pages/safe+harbor+list. 

 

VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE FTC ACT 

 

9. In October 2001, respondent submitted to Commerce a 

self-certification to the Safe Harbor.  Respondent renewed that 

self-certification in October 2002 and October 2003. 

 

10. In October 2004, respondent did not renew its self-

certification to the Safe Harbor, and Commerce updated 

respondent’s status to “not current” on its public website.  Until 

July 2009, respondent did not renew its self-certification to the 

Safe Harbor and was in “not current” status on Commerce’s 

website.  (Exhibit A, Declaration of Damon C. Greer). 

 

11. Since at least September 2001 to the present, respondent 

has disseminated or caused to be disseminated privacy policies 

and statements on the www.collectify.com website, including, but 

not limited to, the following statements: 

 

This Privacy Policy complies with the 

U.S. Department of Commerce Safe 

Harbor Privacy Principles, as approved 

by the European Commission.  

http://www.export.gov/
http://web.ita.doc.gov/safeharbor/shlist.nsf/web
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Collectify is in the process of certifying 

its compliance with the U.S. 

Department of Commerce. 

 

Exhibit B, Oct. 2001 Privacy Policy; Exhibit C, Feb. 2003 Privacy 

Policy; Exhibit D, Dec. 2004 Privacy Policy; Exhibit E, Dec. 

2005 Privacy Policy; Exhibit F, Dec. 2008 Privacy Policy. 

 

12. Through the means described in Paragraph 11, respondent 

represented, expressly or by implication, that it is seeking self-

certification to, or is a current participant in, the Safe Harbor. 

 

13. In truth and in fact, from October 2004 to July 2009, 

respondent did not seek self-certification to, and was not a current 

participant in, the Safe Harbor.  Therefore, the representations set 

forth in Paragraph 11 were, and are, false or misleading. 

 

14. The acts and practices of respondents as alleged in this 

complaint constitute unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or 

affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal 

Trade Commission Act. 

 

THEREFORE, the Federal Trade Commission this ninth day 

of November, 2009, has issued this complaint against respondent. 

 

By the Commission. 
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Exhibit A 
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Exhibit B 
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Exhibit C 
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Exhibit D 
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Exhibit E 
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Exhibit F 
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DECISION AND ORDER 

 

The Federal Trade Commission, having initiated an 

investigation of certain acts and practices of the Respondent 

named in the caption hereof, and the Respondent having been 

furnished thereafter with a copy of a draft of Complaint, which 

the Bureau of Consumer Protection proposed to present to the 

Commission for its consideration and which, if issued, would 

charge the Respondent with violation of the Federal Trade 

Commission Act; and 

 

The Respondent and counsel for the Commission having 

thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order, an 

admission by the Respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set 

forth in the aforesaid draft complaint, a statement that the signing 

of the agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not 

constitute an admission by the Respondent that the law has been 

violated as alleged in such complaint, or that any of the facts as 

alleged in such complaint, other than jurisdictional facts, are true, 

and waivers and other provisions as required by the 

Commission’s Rules; and 

 

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and 

having determined that it had reason to believe that the 

Respondent has violated the Federal Trade Commission Act, and 

that a complaint should issue stating its charges in that respect, 

and having thereupon accepted the executed consent agreement 

and placed such agreement on the public record for a period of 

thirty (30) days for the receipt and consideration of public 

comments, now in further conformity with the procedure 

prescribed in Section 2.34 of its Rules, 16 C.F.R. § 2.34, the 

Commission hereby issues its complaint, makes the following 

jurisdictional findings, and enters the following order: 

 

1. Respondent Collectify LLC is a Delaware corporation 

with its principal office or place of business at 235 

East 73rd Street, Suite 3C, New York, New York 

10012. 

 

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the 

subject matter of this proceeding and of the 
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Respondent, and the proceeding is in the public 

interest. 

 

ORDER 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

For purposes of this Order, the following definitions shall 

apply: 

 

A. Unless otherwise specified, “respondent” shall mean 

Collectify LLC and its subsidiaries, divisions, 

affiliates, successors and assigns. 

 

B. “Commerce” shall mean as defined in Section 4 of the 

Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44. 

 

I. 

 

IT IS ORDERED that respondent and its officers, agents, 

representatives, and employees, directly or through any 

corporation, subsidiary, division, website, or other device, in 

connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, offering 

for sale, or sale of any product or service, in or affecting 

commerce, shall not misrepresent in any manner, expressly or by 

implication, the extent to which respondent is a member of, 

adheres to, complies with, is certified by, is endorsed by, or 

otherwise participates in any privacy, security, or any other 

compliance program sponsored by the government or any other 

third party. 

 

II. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent shall maintain 

and upon request make available to the Federal Trade 

Commission for inspection and copying, a print or electronic copy 

of, for a period of five (5) years from the date of preparation or 

dissemination, whichever is later, all documents relating to 

compliance with this order, including but not limited to: 
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A. all advertisements, promotional materials, and any 

other statements containing any representations 

covered by this order, with all materials relied upon in 

disseminating the representation; and 

 

B. any documents, whether prepared by or on behalf of 

respondent, that call into question respondent’s 

compliance with this order. 

 

III. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent shall deliver a 

copy of this order to all current and future principals, officers, 

directors, and managers, and to all current and future employees, 

agents, and representatives having responsibilities relating to the 

subject matter of this order, and shall secure from each such 

person a signed and dated statement acknowledging receipt of the 

order.  Respondent shall deliver this order to such current 

personnel within thirty (30) days after service of this order, and to 

such future personnel within thirty (30) days after the person 

assumes such position or responsibilities. 

 

IV. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent shall notify 

the Commission at least thirty (30) days prior to any change in the 

corporation(s) that may affect compliance obligations arising 

under this order, including, but not limited to: a dissolution, 

assignment, sale, merger, or other action that would result in the 

emergence of a successor corporation; the creation or dissolution 

of a subsidiary, parent, or affiliate that engages in any acts or 

practices subject to this order; the proposed filing of a bankruptcy 

petition; or a change in the corporate name or address.  Provided, 

however, that, with respect to any proposed change in the 

corporation(s) about which respondent learns fewer than thirty 

(30) days prior to the date such action is to take place, respondent 

shall notify the Commission as soon as is practicable after 

obtaining such knowledge.  All notices required by this Part shall 

be sent by certified mail to the Associate Director, Division of 

Enforcement, Bureau of Consumer Protection, Federal Trade 

Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580.  
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V. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent shall, within 

sixty (60) days after service of this order, and at such other times 

as the Commission may require, file with the Commission a 

report, in writing, setting forth in detail the manner and form in 

which it has complied with this order. 

 

VI. 

 

This order will terminate on November 9, 2029, or twenty 

(20) years from the most recent date that the United States or the 

Commission files a complaint (with or without an accompanying 

consent decree) in federal court alleging any violation of the 

order, whichever comes later; provided, however, that the filing of 

such a complaint will not affect the duration of: 

 

A. any Part in this order that terminates in fewer than 

twenty (20) years; 

 

B. this order’s application to any respondent that is not 

named as a defendant in such complaint; and 

 

C. this order if such complaint is filed after the order has 

terminated pursuant to this Part. 

 

Provided, further, that if such complaint is dismissed or a federal 

court rules that respondent did not violate any provision of the 

order, and the dismissal or ruling is either not appealed or upheld 

on appeal, then the order as to such respondent will terminate 

according to this Part as though the complaint had never been 

filed, except that the order will not terminate between the date 

such complaint is filed and the later of the deadline for appealing 

such dismissal or ruling and the date such dismissal or ruling is 

upheld on appeal. 

 

By the Commission. 
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ANALYSIS OF CONSENT ORDER TO AID PUBLIC 

COMMENT 

 

The Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “Commission”) 

has accepted, subject to final approval, a consent agreement from 

Collectify, Inc. (“Collectify”). 

 

The proposed consent order has been placed on the public 

record for thirty (30) days for receipt of comments by interested 

persons.  Comments received during this period will become part 

of the public record.  After thirty (30) days, the Commission will 

again review the agreement and the comments received, and will 

decide whether it should withdraw from the agreement and take 

appropriate action or make final the agreement’s proposed order. 

 

This matter concerns alleged false or misleading 

representations that Collectify made to consumers concerning its 

participation in the Safe Harbor privacy framework (“Safe 

Harbor”) agreed upon by the U.S. and the European Union 

(“EU”).  It is among the Commission’s first cases to challenge 

deceptive claims about the Safe Harbor.  The Safe Harbor 

provides a mechanism for U.S. companies to transfer data outside 

the EU consistent with European law.   To join the Safe Harbor, a 

company must self-certify to the U.S. Department of Commerce 

(“Commerce”) that it complies with seven principles and related 

requirements.  Commerce maintains a public website, 

www.export.gov/safeharbor, where it posts the names of 

companies that have self-certified to the Safe Harbor.  The listing 

of companies indicates whether their self-certification is “current” 

or “not current.”  Companies are required to re-certify every year 

in order to retain their status as “current” members of the Safe 

Harbor framework. 

 

Collectify sells comprehensive cataloguing software to 

consumers over the internet, including through a website 

(www.collectify.com).  According to the Commission’s 

complaint, since at least September 2001, Collectify has set forth 

on its website, www.collectify.com, privacy policies and 

statements about its practices, including statements related to its 

participation in the Safe Harbor privacy framework. 
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The Commission’s complaint alleges that Collectify falsely 

represented that it was a current participant in the Safe Harbor 

when, in fact, from October 2004 until July 2009, Collectify was 

not a current participant in the Safe Harbor.  The Commission’s 

complaint alleges that in October 2001, Collectify submitted a 

Safe Harbor self-certification, which it renewed in October 2002 

and October 2003.  Collectify did not renew its self-certification 

in October 2004 and was in “not current” status on the Commerce 

website until it renewed its self-certification in July 2009. 

 

Part I of the proposed order prohibits Collectify from making 

misrepresentations about its membership in any privacy, security, 

or any other compliance program sponsored by the government or 

any other third party. 

 

Parts II through VI of the proposed order are reporting and 

compliance provisions.  Part II requires Collectify to retain 

documents relating to its compliance with the order for a five-year 

period.  Part III requires dissemination of the order now and in the 

future to persons with responsibilities relating to the subject 

matter of the order.  Part IV ensures notification to the FTC of 

changes in corporate status.  Part V mandates that Collectify 

submit an initial compliance report to the FTC, and make 

available to the FTC subsequent reports.  Part VI is a provision 

“sunsetting” the order after twenty (20) years, with certain 

exceptions. 

 

The purpose of the analysis is to facilitate public comment on 

the proposed order.  It is not intended to constitute an official 

interpretation of the agreement and proposed order or to modify in 

any way their terms. 
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IN THE MATTER OF 

 

CSE, INC. D/B/A MAD MOD, 

CHRIS SAETVEIT, 

AND 

CYNDI SAETVEIT 

 
CONSENT ORDER, ETC. IN REGARD TO ALLEGED VIOLATIONS OF 

SEC. 5 OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT AND THE 

TEXTILE FIBER PRODUCTS IDENTIFICATION ACT 

 

Docket No. C-4280; File No. 082 3181 

Complaint, December 15, 2009 - Decision, December 15, 2009 

 

This consent order addresses allegations that CSE, Inc., also doing business as 

Mad Mod, a producer, seller and distributor of a textile fiber product called 

“Bamboo Comfort” throughout the United States, made deceptive advertising 

claims about its product in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act. Respondents 

sold textile fiber products that were misbranded or falsely or deceptively 

advertised as bamboo fiber. The respondent did not comply with the Textile 

Act or the Textile Rules and Regulations. The order prohibits the respondents 

from advertising a product is made of bamboo, or bamboo fiber, or 

manufactured using an environmentally friendly process, or is anti-microbial, 

unless the representation is true, non-misleading, and, at the time it is made, 

respondents possess and rely upon competent and reliable scientific evidence 

that substantiates the representation. 

 

Participants 

 

For the Commission: Melinda Claybaugh and Korin Ewing. 

 

For the Respondents: Chris Saetveit and Cyndi Saetveit, 

Owners, pro se. 

 

COMPLAINT 

 

The Federal Trade Commission, having reason to believe that 

CSE, Inc. also doing business as Mad Mod (“Mad Mod”), a 

corporation, and Chris Saetveit and Cyndi Saetveit, individually 

and as owners of the corporation (“Respondents”), have violated 

the provisions of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 

41, et seq., the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act, 15 

U.S.C. § 70, et seq., and the Rules and Regulations promulgated 
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thereunder, 16 C.F.R. Part 303, and it appearing to the 

Commission that this proceeding is in the public interest, alleges: 

 

1. Respondent Mad Mod is a Tennessee corporation with its 

principal office or place of business at 504 4th Avenue South, 

Nashville, Tennessee 37210. 

 

2. Respondents Chris Saetveit and Cyndi Saetveit are the 

owners of Mad Mod.  Individually or in concert with others, they 

formulate, direct, or control the policies, acts, or practices of the 

corporation, including the acts or practices alleged in this 

complaint.  Their principal offices or places of business are the 

same as that of Mad Mod. 

 

3. The acts and practices of Respondents alleged in this 

complaint have been in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is 

defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 

U.S.C. § 44. 

 

4. Respondents manufacture, advertise, market, promote, 

offer to sell, sell, and distribute a line of textile fiber products 

called “Bamboo Comfort,” throughout the United States, using 

both Mad Mod’s own website, www.mad-mod.com, and other 

retailers. 

 

5. Respondents price the textile fiber products that they 

manufacture, market, promote, distribute, and sell at a premium 

compared to other, similar products in the marketplace. 

 

6. In advertisements to induce consumers to purchase their 

textile fiber products, Respondents make or have made various 

claims, on their website and elsewhere, concerning the fiber 

content and anti-microbial characteristics of their textile fiber 

products, as well as the environmentally friendly manufacturing 

processes used to make their products, including, but not limited 

to, the following: 
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A. Mad Mod Website (www.mad-mod.com) 

 

1. bamboo comfort 

 

Go to the Products page, then click Bamboo 

Comfort to see our line of 100% bamboo fiber 

items, including our new blankets! 

 

(Homepage, Exhibit A at 1). 

 

2. Bamboo Comfort 

 

. . . By applying an exclusive, eco-friendly 

manufacturing process to the fastest growing plant 

on earth, Bamboo fiber offers comfort with a 

conscience.  Bamboo Comfort, a new textile line at 

Mad Mod, introduces ultra-soft, 100% bamboo 

fiber textiles with socioeconomic and 

environmental benefits that aren’t found in any 

other textile fibers in the market today. 

 

* * * * 

 

Characteristics: 

 

• Bamboo fibers possess natural anti-microbial 

agents 

 

* * * * 

 

(“Products” page, Exhibit A at 2-3). 

 

3. Mad Mod – Established 2003 

 

* * * * 

 

We have also developed our own line of 100% 

bamboo textiles.  Back in 2005 before being 

‘green’ was even popular, Bamboo Comfort was 

formed.  We now offer 100% bamboo fiber towels 

http://www.mad-mod.com/
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and blankets which are luxurious to the touch AND 

environmentally friendly. 

 

(“About Us” page, Exhibit A at 4). 

 

4. 100% Bamboo Bath Towel Set 

 

This is our best and most durable 100% bamboo 

fiber bath towel set yet!  They have an ultra-

luxurious feel with 3 to 4 times the absorbency of 

cotton towels. 

 

(“Shop Here” page, Exhibit A at 5). 

 

B. Product Label 

 

bamboo comfort 

 

100% bamboo 

 

(Exhibit B). 

 

C. Product Packaging 

 

bamboo comfort 

 

Bamboo fiber is a sustainable textile that is highly 

absorbent, naturally antibacterial and luxuriously soft. 

 

To care for your bamboo towels, machine-wash on 

delicate cycle and tumble-dry on low.  Bleach and 

fabric softeners damage the bamboo fiber and should 

not be used on Bamboo Comfort products. 

 

(Exhibit C). 

 

7. The textile fiber products manufactured, marketed, 

promoted, distributed, and sold by Respondents consist of rayon 

and not actual bamboo fibers woven into fabric. 
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8. Rayon is the generic name for a type of regenerated, or 

manufactured, fiber made from cellulose.  Rayon is manufactured 

by taking purified cellulose from a plant source, also called a 

cellulose precursor, and converting it to a viscous solution by 

dissolving it in one or more chemicals, such as sodium hydroxide. 

The chemical solution is then forced through spinnerets and into 

an acidic bath where it solidifies into fibers. 

 

9. The process used to manufacture rayon from cellulose 

involves hazardous chemicals.  See 40 C.F.R. Part 63 (“National 

Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants: Cellulose 

Products Manufacturing”). 

 

10. “[H]azardous air pollutants (HAP) emitted from cellulose 

products manufacturing operations” include carbon disulfide, 

carbonyl sulfide, ethylene oxide, methanol, methyl chloride, 

propylene oxide, and toluene.  40 C.F.R. § 63.5480. 

 

11. Many plant sources may be used as cellulose precursors 

for rayon fabric, including cotton linters (short cotton fibers), 

wood pulp, and bamboo.  Regardless of the source of the cellulose 

used, however, the manufacturing process involves the use of 

hazardous chemicals and the resulting fiber is rayon and not 

cotton, wood, or bamboo fiber. 

 

12. Respondents do not state that their textile fiber products 

are rayon, nor, assuming that bamboo is the source of the 

cellulose used in their textile fiber products, do Respondents state 

that their textile fiber products are rayon made from bamboo.  

Moreover, on the pages of their website stating the claims set 

forth in Paragraph 6, Respondents do not provide any description 

of the chemical process used to manufacture their textile fiber 

products. 

 

13. Respondents sell or have sold their textile fiber products 

without including in the proper place on the product label the 

name of the country where each such product was processed or 

manufactured. 

 

14. Respondents advertise or have advertised their textile fiber 

products for sale on the www.mad-mod.com website without 
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including in the description of the product a clear and conspicuous 

statement that the product was either made in U.S.A., imported, or 

both. 

 

VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE FTC ACT 

 

FALSE OR MISLEADING REPRESENTATIONS 

 

15. Through the means described in Paragraph 6, Respondents 

represent or have represented, expressly or by implication, that: 

 

A. Their textile fiber products are bamboo fiber; 

 

B. Their textile fiber products are manufactured using an 

environmentally friendly process; and  

 

C. Their textile fiber products retain anti-microbial 

properties of the bamboo plant. 

 

16. In truth and in fact: 

 

A. Respondents’ textile fiber products are not bamboo 

fiber, but instead are rayon, a regenerated cellulose 

fiber; 

 

B. Respondents’ textile fiber products are not 

manufactured using an environmentally friendly 

process but rather a process that involves the use of 

toxic chemicals and results in the emission of 

hazardous air pollutants; and 

 

C. Respondents’ textile fiber products do not retain anti-

microbial properties of the bamboo plant. 

 

17. Therefore, the representations set forth in Paragraph 15 

were, and are, false or misleading, and the making of such 

representations constitutes a deceptive act or practice, in or 

affecting commerce, in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal 

Trade Commission Act. 
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UNSUBSTANTIATED REPRESENTATIONS 

 

18. Through the means described in Paragraph 6, Respondents 

represent or have represented, expressly or by implication, that 

they possessed and relied upon a reasonable basis that 

substantiated the representations set forth in Paragraph 15, at the 

time the representations were made. 

 

19. In truth and in fact, Respondents did not possess and rely 

upon a reasonable basis that substantiated the representations set 

forth in Paragraph 15, at the time the representations were made. 

 

20. Therefore, the representation set forth in Paragraph 18 

was, and is, false or misleading, and the making of such 

representation constitutes a deceptive act or practice, in or 

affecting commerce, in violation of Section 5(a) of the Federal 

Trade Commission Act. 

 

TEXTILE FIBER PRODUCTS IDENTIFICATION ACT 

and RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 

21. The Textile Fiber Products Identification Act, 15 U.S.C. § 

70, et seq. (“Textile Act”), governs, inter alia, the labeling and 

advertising of textile fiber products introduced, manufactured for 

introduction, delivered for introduction, sold, advertised, or 

offered for sale in commerce.  See 15 U.S.C. § 70a. 

 

22. Under the Textile Act, a textile fiber product is 

“misbranded if it is falsely or deceptively stamped, tagged, 

labeled, invoiced, advertised, or otherwise identified as to the 

name or amount of constituent fibers contained therein.”  15 

U.S.C. § 70b(a). 

 

23. Pursuant to the Textile Act, 15 U.S.C. § 70e(c), the 

Federal Trade Commission has promulgated Rules and 

Regulations for its administration and enforcement (“Textile 

Rules and Regulations”).  See 16 C.F.R. Part 303.  The Textile 

Rules and Regulations state: 

 

A. All textile fiber products must carry permanent, 

affixed labels stating the recognized generic names of 
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the constituent fibers, as well as indicating, among 

other things, the “percentages by weight of the 

constituent fibers present in the textile fiber product, 

excluding permissive ornamentation, in amounts of 5 

percent or more,” as well as the “name of the country 

where such product was processed or manufactured.”  

16 C.F.R. § 303.16(a)(1), (a)(3); see also 16 C.F.R. §§ 

303.6, 303.15 and 303.33; 

 

B. In advertising textile fiber products in promotional 

materials disseminated to ultimate consumers in print 

or by electronic means, other than by broadcast, where 

the consumer is solicited to purchase such textile 

products without examining the actual product 

purchased, the description of the product must contain 

a clear and conspicuous statement that the product was 

either made in U.S.A., imported, or both.  16 C.F.R. § 

303.34; 

 

C. In advertising and labeling textile fiber products, no 

generic name for a manufactured fiber may be used 

until such generic name has been “established or 

otherwise recognized by the Commission,” 16 C.F.R. 

§ 303.8, and such generic names must be used when 

identifying the fiber content in the information 

required in such labels and advertisements, 16 C.F.R. § 

303.6; 

 

D. The only generic terms for fibers manufactured from 

regenerated cellulose that have been established or 

otherwise recognized by the FTC are rayon, viscose, 

modal, cupro, and lyocell.  See 16 C.F.R. § 303.7(d); 

 

E. “Words, coined words, symbols or depictions, (a) 

which constitute or imply the name or designation of a 

fiber which is not present in the product, (b) which are 

phonetically similar to the name or designation of such 

a fiber, or (c) which are only a slight variation of 

spelling from the name or designation of such a fiber 

shall not be used in such a manner as to represent or 

imply that such fiber is present in the product.” 16 
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C.F.R. § 303.18.  Any term used in advertising, 

including internet advertising, that constitutes or 

connotes the name or presence of a textile fiber is 

deemed to be an implication of fiber content.  16 

C.F.R. § 303.40; and 

 

F. Any information or representations included in 

advertising or labeling of a textile fiber product that is 

not required under the Textile Act or the Textile Rules 

and Regulations “shall in no way be false, deceptive, 

or misleading as to fiber content and shall not include 

any names, terms, or representations prohibited by the 

[Textile] Act and regulations.  Such non-required 

information or representations shall not be set forth or 

so used as to interfere with, minimize, or detract from 

the required information.”  16 C.F.R. § 303.42(b); 16 

C.F.R. § 303.41(d); see also 16 C.F.R. § 303.17. 

 

24. A violation either of the Textile Act or of the Textile 

Rules and Regulations constitutes an unfair and deceptive act or 

practice in violation of the Federal Trade Commission Act.  See 

15 U.S.C. §§ 70a and 70e. 

 

VIOLATIONS OF THE TEXTILE ACT 

AND THE TEXTILE RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 

25. As set forth in Paragraph 6, Respondents have: 

 

A. labeled their textile fiber products as consisting of 

bamboo; and 

 

B. advertised the fiber content of their textile fiber 

products using the terms “bamboo” and “bamboo 

fiber.” 

 

26. In truth and in fact, Respondents’ textile fiber products are 

not bamboo fiber but are rayon, a regenerated cellulose fiber. 
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27. As set forth in Paragraphs 13 and 14, Respondents have: 

 

A. failed to include in the proper place on the labels of 

their textile fiber products the name of the country 

where the products were processed or manufactured; 

and 

 

B. advertised and sold their textile fiber products on the 

www.mad-mod.com website without including in the 

description of each product a clear and conspicuous 

statement that the product was either made in U.S.A., 

imported, or both. 

 

28. Through the means described in Paragraphs 6, 13, and 14, 

Respondents have manufactured for introduction, introduced, 

advertised, offered for sale, or sold textile fiber products that are 

misbranded or falsely or deceptively advertised, as prohibited by 

Sections 70a and 70b of the Textile Act, 15 U.S.C. § 70, et seq., 

and in violation of Sections 303.6, 303.8, 303.16, 303.17, 303.18, 

303.33, 303.34, 303.40, 303.41, and 303.42 of the Textile Rules 

and Regulations, 16 C.F.R. Part 303. 

 

29. Respondents’ violations of the Textile Act and of the 

Textile Rules and Regulations constitute deceptive acts or 

practices, in or affecting commerce, in violation of Section 5(a) of 

the Federal Trade Commission Act. 

 

THEREFORE, the Federal Trade Commission, this fifteenth 

day of December, 2009, has issued this complaint against 

Respondents. 

 

By the Commission. 
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DECISION AND ORDER 

 

The Federal Trade Commission (“Commission”) having 

initiated an investigation of certain acts and practices of the 

respondents named in the caption hereof, and the respondents 

having been furnished thereafter with a copy of a draft complaint 

that the Bureau of Consumer Protection proposed to present to the 

Commission for its consideration and which, if issued by the 

Commission, would charge the respondents with violations of the 

Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45 et seq., the 

Textile Fiber Products Identification Act, 15 U.S.C. § 70, et seq., 

and the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder, 16 C.F.R. 

Part 303; and 

 

The respondents and counsel for the Commission having 

thereafter executed an agreement containing a consent order 

(“consent agreement”), an admission by the respondents of all the 

jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid draft complaint, a 

statement that the signing of said consent agreement is for 

settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by 

the respondents that the law has been violated as alleged in the 

complaint, or that any of the facts as alleged in such complaint, 

other than jurisdictional facts, are true, and waivers and other 

provisions as required by the Commission’s Rules; and 

 

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and 

having determined that it has reason to believe that the 

respondents have violated said Acts and Rules, and that a 

complaint should issue stating its charges in that respect, and 

having thereupon accepted the executed consent agreement and 

placed such consent agreement on the public record for a period 

of thirty (30) days for the receipt and consideration of public 

comments, and having duly considered the comments received 

from interested persons pursuant to section 2.34 of its Rules, now 

in conformity with the procedure prescribed in Section 2.34 of its 

Rules, the Commission hereby issues its complaint, makes the 

following jurisdictional findings, and enters the following order: 

 

1. Respondent CSE, Inc. also doing business as Mad 

Mod, is a Tennessee corporation with its principal 
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place of business at 504 4th Avenue South, Nashville, 

Tennessee 37210. 

 

2. Respondents Chris Saetveit and Cyndi Saetveit are the 

owners of Mad Mod.  Individually or in concert with 

others, they formulate, direct, or control the policies, 

acts, or practices of the corporation.  Their principal 

offices or places of business are the same as that of 

Mad Mod. 

 

3. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the 

subject matter of this proceeding and of the 

Respondents, and the proceeding is in the public 

interest. 

 

ORDER 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

For purposes of this order, the following definitions shall 

apply: 

 

A. “Commerce” shall mean as defined in Section 4 of the 

Federal Trade Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. § 44. 

 

B. “Competent and reliable scientific evidence” shall 

mean tests, analyses, research, studies, or other 

evidence based on the expertise of professionals in the 

relevant area, that has been conducted and evaluated in 

an objective manner by persons qualified to do so, 

using procedures generally accepted in the profession 

to yield accurate and reliable results. 

 

C. “Covered product” shall mean any or all of the 

following:  (1) any article of wearing apparel, costume 

or accessory, drapery, floor covering, furnishing, 

bedding, or other textile good of a type customarily 

used in a household, regardless of where used in fact, 

that is made, in whole or in part, of yarn or fabric; or 

(2) any fiber, yarn or fabric, whether in the finished or 
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unfinished state, used or intended for use in any such 

textile good. 

 

D. “Fiber trademark” shall mean a word or words used to 

identify a particular fiber sold by a person and to 

distinguish it from fibers of the same generic class sold 

by others, as defined in 16 C.F.R. § 303.1(r). 

 

E. “Generic name of any manufactured fiber” shall mean 

any name for a textile fiber established and defined by 

the Commission pursuant to Section 70e(c) of the 

Textile Fiber Products Identification Act, as set forth 

in 16 C.F.R. § 303.7. 

 

F. “Manufactured fiber” shall mean any fiber derived by 

a process of manufacture from any substance which, at 

any point in the manufacturing process, is not a fiber, 

as defined in 15 U.S.C. § 70(d). 

 

G. “Required information” shall mean such information 

as is required to be disclosed on labels or invoices and 

in advertising under the Textile Fiber Products 

Identification Act, 15 U.S.C. § 70 et seq., and under 

the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder, 16 

C.F.R. Part 303, as defined in 16 C.F.R. § 303.1(e). 

 

H. Unless otherwise specified, “respondents” shall mean 

CSE, Inc. also doing business as Mad Mod, a 

corporation, its successors and assigns and its officers 

and owners; Chris Saetveit and Cyndi Saetveit, 

individually and as owners of the corporation; and 

each of the above’s agents, representatives, and 

employees. 

 

I. 

 

IT IS ORDERED that respondents, directly or through any 

corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in connection 

with the manufacturing, labeling, advertising, promotion, offering 

for sale, sale, or distribution of any covered product in or 
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affecting commerce, shall not make any representation, in any 

manner, expressly or by implication: 

 

A. That such covered product 

 

1. is made of bamboo or bamboo fiber, including, but 

not limited to, through the use of a fiber trademark 

or other descriptive term or name for a product or 

product line, e.g., Bamboo Comfort; 

 

2. is manufactured using an environmentally friendly 

process; or 

 

3. is anti-microbial or retains the anti-microbial 

properties of any material from which it is made, 

 

unless the representation is true, non-misleading, and, 

at the time it is made, respondents possess and rely 

upon competent and reliable scientific evidence that 

substantiates the representation; or 

 

B. About the benefits, performance, or efficacy of such 

covered product,  

 

unless the representation is true, non-misleading, and, 

at the time it is made, respondents possess and rely 

upon competent and reliable evidence, which when 

appropriate must be competent and reliable scientific 

evidence, that substantiates the representation. 

 

II. 

 

Provided, however, that nothing in this order shall prohibit 

respondents from describing a covered product using the generic 

name of any manufactured fiber and identifying bamboo as the 

cellulose source for such fiber, e.g., rayon made from bamboo, so 

long as such representation is true, non-misleading, complies with 

the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act, 15 U.S.C. § 70, et 

seq. (“Textile Act”) and with the Rules and Regulations 

promulgated thereunder, 16 C.F.R. Part 303 (“Textile Rules”), 

and, at the time such representation is made, respondents possess 
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and rely upon competent and reliable scientific evidence that 

substantiates the representation. 

 

III. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondents, directly or 

through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, in 

connection with the manufacturing, labeling, advertising, 

promotion, offering for sale, sale, or distribution of any covered 

product in or affecting commerce, shall not fail to comply with 

any provision of the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act, 15 

U.S.C. § 70, et seq. (“Textile Act”), or of the Rules and 

Regulations promulgated thereunder, 16 C.F.R. Part 303 (“Textile 

Rules”), copies of which are attached hereto as “Appendix A,” or 

of the Textile Act or Textile Rules as they may hereafter be 

amended, including but not limited to: 

 

A. Selling, offering for sale, or advertising in commerce 

any covered product that is falsely or deceptively 

stamped, tagged, labeled, invoiced, advertised, or 

otherwise identified as to the name or amount of 

constituent fibers contained therein, 15 U.S.C. §§ 70a, 

70b; 

 

B. Selling, offering for sale, or advertising in commerce 

any covered product that does not have a stamp, tag, 

label, or other means of identification on or affixed to 

the inside center of the neck midway between the 

shoulder seams or, if such product does not contain a 

neck, in the most conspicuous place on the inner side 

of such product, unless it is on or affixed on the outer 

side of such product, or in the case of hosiery items on 

the outer side of such product or package, 15 U.S.C. § 

70b(j); 

 

C. Failing to use the recognized generic name of any 

manufactured fiber in the required information in any 

labels, invoices, or advertising of any covered product, 

16 C.F.R. §§ 303.6 and 303.7; 
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D. Failing to include all required information on labels for 

any covered product and in any written advertisement 

disseminated for a covered product that is used to aid, 

promote, or assist, directly or indirectly, in the sale or 

offering for sale of such covered product, including 

identifying: 

 

1. the generic names and percentages by weight of 

the constituent fibers present in the covered 

product, in amounts of 5 percent or more and in the 

order of predominance set forth in 16 C.F.R. § 

303.16(a)(1); 

 

2. the name or registered identification number issued 

by the Commission of the manufacturer or of one 

or more persons marketing or handling the covered 

product; and 

 

3. the name of the country where such covered 

product was processed or manufactured, as 

provided for in § 303.33, 

 

15 U.S.C. § 70b(b); 16 C.F.R. §§ 303.16 and 

303.42(a); 

 

E. Failing to ensure that any fiber trademark or generic 

name used on the label of or in any advertising for any 

covered product: 

 

1. is not false, deceptive, or misleading as to fiber 

content; and  

 

2. does not indicate, directly or indirectly, that the 

covered product is composed wholly or in part of a 

particular fiber, when such is not the case, 

 

16 C.F.R. §§ 303.17(d) and 303.41(d); 

 

F. Failing to ensure that any non-required information or 

representations used on the label of or in the 

advertising for any covered product:  
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1. do not interfere with, minimize, detract from, or 

conflict with required information; 

 

2. do not include any names, terms, or representations 

prohibited by the Textile Act or Rules; and 

 

3. are not false, deceptive, or misleading, 

 

16 C.F.R. §§ 303.16(c) and 303.42(b); 

 

G. Where a covered product is advertised in such manner 

as to require disclosure of the information required by 

the Textile Act and Textile Rules, failing to include all 

parts of the required information in immediate 

conjunction with each other in legible and conspicuous 

type or lettering of equal size and prominence, 16 

C.F.R. § 303.42(a); 

 

H. Failing to ensure that, where a covered product is 

advertised in print or by electronic means, other than 

by broadcast, using materials that solicit consumers to 

purchase such products by mail, telephone, electronic 

mail, or some other method without examining the 

actual product purchased, the description of the 

product includes a clear and conspicuous statement 

that the product was either made in U.S.A., imported, 

or both. 16 C.F.R. §§ 303.1(u) and 303.34; 

 

I. Where a fiber trademark is used in advertising a 

covered product, failing: 

 

1. to include the generic name of the fiber contained 

in such covered product in immediate proximity to 

and in conjunction with such fiber trademark; and 

 

2. to include a full disclosure of the fiber content 

information required by the Textile Act and Textile 

Rules in at least one instance in any such 

advertisement, 

 

16 C.F.R. § 303.41;  
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J. Failing to ensure that any words, coined words, 

symbols or depictions used in the labeling or 

advertising of a covered product which: 

 

1. constitute or imply the name or designation of a 

fiber; 

 

2. are phonetically similar to the name or designation 

of a fiber; or 

 

3. are only a slight variation of spelling from the 

name or designation of a fiber 

 

are not used in such a manner as to represent or imply 

that such fiber is present in the covered product, unless 

such fiber is actually present in that product, 16 C.F.R. 

§ 303.18; and 

 

K. Failing to maintain for at least three years proper 

records for any covered products manufactured by 

respondents, including records showing the fiber 

content, 15 U.S.C. § 70d(b); 16 C.F.R. § 303.39. 

 

IV. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent CSE, Inc. also 

doing business as Mad Mod, and its successors and assigns, and 

respondents Chris Saetveit and Cyndi Saetveit shall, for five (5) 

years after the last date of dissemination of any representation 

covered by this order, maintain and upon request make available 

to the Federal Trade Commission for inspection and copying: 

 

A. All advertisements, labeling, packaging and 

promotional materials containing the representation; 

 

B. All materials that were relied upon in disseminating 

the representation; 

 

C. All tests, reports, studies, surveys, demonstrations, or 

other evidence in its possession or control that 

contradict, qualify, or call into question the 
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representation, or the basis relied upon for the 

representation, including complaints and other 

communications with consumers or with governmental 

or consumer protection organizations; and 

 

D. All acknowledgments of receipt of this order obtained 

pursuant to Part V. 

 

V. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent CSE, Inc. also 

doing business as Mad Mod, and its successors and assigns, and 

respondents Chris Saetveit and Cyndi Saetveit shall deliver a copy 

of this order to all current and future principals, members, 

officers, directors, and managers, and to all current and future 

employees, agents, and representatives having responsibilities 

with respect to the subject matter of this order, and shall secure 

from each such person a signed and dated statement 

acknowledging receipt of the order.  Respondents shall deliver 

this order to current personnel within thirty (30) days after the 

date of service of this order, and to future personnel within thirty 

(30) days after the person assumes such position or 

responsibilities. 

 

VI. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent CSE, Inc. also 

doing business as Mad Mod, and its successors and assigns, and 

respondents Chris Saetveit and Cyndi Saetveit shall notify the 

Commission at least thirty (30) days prior to any change with 

regard to CSE, Inc. also d/b/a Mad Mod, or any business entity 

that any respondent directly or indirectly controls, or has an 

ownership interest in, that may affect compliance obligations 

arising under this order, including but not limited to formation of 

a new business entity; a dissolution, assignment, sale, merger, or 

other action that would result in the emergence of a successor 

entity; the creation or dissolution of a subsidiary, parent, or 

affiliate that engages in any acts or practices subject to this order; 

the proposed filing of a bankruptcy petition; or a change in the 

business or corporate name or address.  Provided, however, that, 

with respect to any proposed change about which respondents 



 CSE, INC. 591 

 

 

 Decision and Order 

 

learn less than thirty (30) days prior to the date such action is to 

take place, respondents shall notify the Commission as soon as is 

practicable after obtaining such knowledge.  All notices required 

by this Part shall be sent by certified mail to the Associate 

Director, Division of Enforcement, Bureau of Consumer 

Protection, Federal Trade Commission, 600 Pennsylvania 

Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20580. 

 

VII. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondents Chris 

Saetveit and Cyndi Saetveit, for a period of five (5) years after the 

date of issuance of this order, each shall notify the Commission of 

the discontinuance of his or her current business or employment, 

or of his or her affiliation with any new business or employment.  

The notice shall include the respondent’s new business address 

and telephone number, and a description of the nature of the 

business or employment and his or her duties and responsibilities. 

All notices required by this Part shall be sent by certified mail to 

the Associate Director, Division of Enforcement, Bureau of 

Consumer Protection, Federal Trade Commission, 600 

Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20580. 

 

VIII. 

 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent CSE, Inc. also 

doing business as Mad Mod, and its successors and assigns, and 

respondents Chris Saetveit and Cyndi Saetveit shall, within sixty 

(60) days after the date of service of this order, file with the 

Commission a true and accurate report, in writing, setting forth in 

detail the manner and form in which they have complied with this 

order.  Within ten (10) days of receipt of written notice from a 

representative of the Commission, respondents each shall submit 

additional true and accurate written reports.  

 

IX. 

 

This order will terminate on December 15, 2029, or twenty 

(20) years from the most recent date that the United States or the 

Federal Trade Commission files a complaint (with or without an 

accompanying consent decree) in federal court alleging any 
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violation of the order, whichever comes later; provided, however, 

that the filing of such a complaint will not affect the duration of: 

 

A. Any Part in this order that terminates in less than 

twenty (20) years; 

 

B. This order’s application to any respondent that is not 

named as a respondent in such complaint; and 

 

C. This order if such complaint is filed after the order has 

terminated pursuant to this Part. 

 

Provided, further, that if such complaint is dismissed or a federal 

court rules that the respondents did not violate any provision of 

the order, and the dismissal or ruling is either not appealed or 

upheld on appeal, then the order will terminate according to this 

Part as though the complaint had never been filed, except that the 

order will not terminate between the date such complaint is filed 

and the later of the deadline for appealing such dismissal or ruling 

and the date such dismissal or ruling is upheld on appeal. 

 

By the Commission. 
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ANALYSIS OF CONSENT ORDER TO AID PUBLIC 

COMMENT 

 

The Federal Trade Commission (“FTC” or “Commission”) 

has accepted, subject to final approval, an agreement containing a 

consent order from CSE, Inc. d/b/a Mad Mod, a corporation, and 

Chris and Cyndi Saetveit, individually and as owners of the 

corporation (together, “respondents”). 

 

The proposed consent order has been placed on the public 

record for thirty (30) days for reception of comments by interested 

persons.  Comments received during this period will become part 

of the public record.  After thirty (30) days, the Commission will 

again review the agreement and the comments received and will 

decide whether it should withdraw from the agreement or make 

final the agreement’s proposed order. 

 

This matter involves respondents’ marketing and sale of 

textile fiber products purportedly made of bamboo fiber.  The 

FTC complaint alleges that respondents violated Section 5(a) of 

the FTC Act by making false claims that their textile fiber 

products are bamboo fiber; retain the anti-microbial properties of 

the bamboo plant; and are manufactured using an 

environmentally-friendly process.  The complaint alleges that 

respondents’ textile fiber products are made of rayon and do not 

retain the anti-microbial properties of the bamboo plant, and that 

their manufacturing process involves the use of toxic chemicals 

and results in the emission of hazardous air pollutants.  The 

complaint further alleges that the respondents failed to have 

substantiation for the foregoing claims. 

 

The complaint also alleges that the proposed respondents have 

violated the Textile Fiber Products Identification Act (“Textile 

Act”) and the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder 

(“Textile Rules”) by falsely and deceptively labeling and 

advertising their textile fiber products as bamboo; by advertising 

their products without including in the description of each product 

a statement that the product was made in the U.S.A., imported, or 

both; and by failing to properly label their textile fiber products 

with the name of the country where each such product was 

processed or manufactured.  
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 Analysis to Aid Public Comment 

 

The proposed consent order contains provisions designed to 

prevent respondents from engaging in similar acts and practices in 

the future.  Part I.A of the proposed order prohibits respondents 

from representing that any textile fiber product (1) is made of 

bamboo or bamboo fiber; (2) is manufactured using an 

environmentally friendly process; or (3) is anti-microbial or 

retains the anti-microbial properties of any material from which it 

is made, unless such representations are true, not misleading, and 

substantiated by competent and reliable scientific evidence.  Part 

I.B prohibits respondents from making claims about the benefits, 

performance, or efficacy of any textile fiber product, unless at the 

time the representation is made, it is truthful and not misleading, 

and is substantiated by competent and reliable evidence, which 

when appropriate must be competent and reliable scientific 

evidence.  Part II makes clear that, although Part I prohibits 

respondents from making false and unsubstantiated 

representations that their textile fiber products are made of 

bamboo or bamboo fiber as opposed to rayon, the respondents 

nonetheless may describe such products using the generic name of 

any manufactured fiber and identifying bamboo as the cellulose 

source for such fiber (e.g., rayon made from bamboo), so long as 

such representation is true and substantiated.  Part III of the 

proposed order prohibits respondents from failing to comply with 

the Textile Act or the Textile Rules. 

 

Parts IV through VIII require respondents to keep copies of 

relevant advertisements and materials substantiating claims made 

in the advertisements; to provide copies of the order to certain of 

their personnel; to notify the Commission of changes in corporate 

structure that might affect compliance obligations under the order; 

to notify the Commission of changes in individual respondents’ 

current business or employment; and to file compliance reports 

with the Commission and respond to other requests from FTC 

staff.  Part IX provides that the order will terminate after twenty 

(20) years under certain circumstances. 

 

The purpose of this analysis is to facilitate public comment on 

the proposed order.  It is not intended to constitute an official 

interpretation of the agreement and proposed order or to modify in 

any way their terms. 

 




